

Xena2889 User Manual

Release 97

Teledyne LeCroy Xena

Apr 24, 2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1	Overview	1
2	Installation	3
3	Available Tests3.1Throughput and Forwarding Rate Tests3.2Congestion Control3.3Forward Pressure3.4Maximum Forwarding Rate3.5Address Caching Capacity3.6Address Learning Rate3.7Errored Frames Filtering3.8Broadcast Forwarding	5 5 6 6 6 7 8 8
4	Getting Started4.1Performing Rate Test (Plain Ethernet)4.2Performing Rate Test (IPv4)4.3Performing Errored Frames Filtering Test4.4Step-By-Step Guide	11 11 13 14 15
5	General Panels 5.1 Application Panels 5.2 Status Panel 5.2 Status Panel 5.2	21 22 22
6	Physical Ports Panel	23
7	Selected Ports Panel	25
8	General Test Configuration Panel 8.1 Frame Sizes 8.2 Overall Test Port Rate 8.3 Misc. Options 8.4 Port Scheduling 8.5 Reset and Error Handling	27 27 28 28 29 30 31
1	9.1 Selecting Tests for Execution	31

	9.2	Configuring Test Options	32
10	Proto 10.1	Col Segment Profile Panel Available Profiles List	47 47
	10.2	Profile Editor	48
	10.3	Modifiers	49
	10.4	Value Ranges	51
	10.5	PCAP Import	52
11	Repo	rt Options Panel	53
	11.1	Report Identification	53
	11.2	Report Generation Options	53
	11.3	Report Formats	54
12	Resu	t Data Panel	55
12 13	Resul	t Data Panel guration Errors Panel	55 57
12 13 14	Resul Confi Appli	It Data Panel guration Errors Panel ication Settings	55 57 59
12 13 14 15	Resul Confi Appli Troul	It Data Panel guration Errors Panel ication Settings bleshooting	55 57 59 61
12 13 14 15	Resul Confi Appli Troul 15.1	It Data Panel guration Errors Panel ication Settings bleshooting Basic Instructions	 55 57 59 61 61
12 13 14 15	Resul Confi Appli Troul 15.1 15.2	It Data Panel In guration Errors Panel In cation Settings In bleshooting Basic Instructions Additional Details	 55 57 59 61 61 62
12 13 14 15 16	Resul Confi Appli Troul 15.1 15.2 Gloss	It Data Panel iguration Errors Panel ication Settings bleshooting Basic Instructions Additional Details sary of Terms	 55 57 59 61 61 62 65

ONE

OVERVIEW



Fig. 1.1: Xena2889 overview

This is the user manual for Xena2889. Xena2889 is a Windows application that enables you to perform advanced network tests according to the **RFC 2889** using one or more of the Xena test equipment chassis.

The Xena2889 application features the following capabilities:

- Enables the user to create, edit and execute test configurations using Xena Networks test equipment in accordance with **RFC 2889**.
- Ability to individually configure and enable the test-types defined in RFC 2889.
- Support for multiple ValkyrieBay and ValkyrieCompact test chassis.
- Support or different network topologies and traffic flow directions.
- Support for both layer 2 and layer 3 testing.
- Support for IPv4 and IPv6.

- Support for multiple ValkyrieBay and ValkyrieCompact test chassis.
- Ability to flexibly define the protocol layers supported by the test (Ethernet, VLANs, IP, UDP, etc.).
- Ability to assign separate protocol layer definitions to each test port.
- Test reports can be created in either PDF or XML format or both.
- Extensive configuration options to fine-tune the tests.

INSTALLATION

Xena2544 is a Windows desktop application compatible with Windows 8 and later versions.

It comes pre-installed as an integral component of the standard Xena software release package, which is available for download from this source.

Following the installation, you can locate a shortcut to the application in the *Start* \rightarrow *Programs* \rightarrow *Xena Network* menu, and additionally (if you opted for this during the setup process), on your desktop.



THREE

AVAILABLE TESTS

The following **RFC 2889** tests are fully supported by the Xena2889:

3.1 Throughput and Forwarding Rate Tests

To determine the throughput, frame loss and forwarding rates of DUT/SUTs for 3 configurations:



Fig. 3.1: Rate Test Topology

- Throughput: Highest data rate that can pass through the DUT/SUT without frame loss
- Forwarding Rate: Highest data rate that can pass through the DUT/SUT frame loss may be experienced
- Flood count: Any frame originating from the DUT/SUT MUST not be counted as a received frame. Frames originating from the DUT/SUT MAY be counted as flooded frames or not counted at all.

3.2 Congestion Control

To determine how a DUT handles congestion. Does the device implement congestion control and does congestion on one port affect an uncongested port.



Fig. 3.2: Congestion Control Test Setup

3.3 Forward Pressure

The Forward Pressure test overloads a DUT/SUT port and measures the output for forward pressure.



Fig. 3.3: Forward Pressure Test Setup

3.4 Maximum Forwarding Rate

Measure the peak value of the Forwarding Rate when the Offered Load is varied between the throughput and the Maximum Offered Load.

3.5 Address Caching Capacity

To determine the address caching capacity of a LAN switching device.

Procedure:

1. Send traffic with a range of MAC addresses as source addresses from tester to learning port - DUT caches as many MAC addresses as possible



Fig. 3.4: Maximum Forwarding Rate Test Setup



Fig. 3.5: Address Caching Capacity Test Setup

- 2. Send traffic with same range of MAC addresses as destination MAC addresses from tester to test port
- 3. Traffic with non-cached MAC addresses are broadcasted and reach the Monitoring port
- 4. If all MAC addresses are cached, no traffic will reach Monitoring port
- 5. Test repeats until no traffic is detected on Monitoring port

3.6 Address Learning Rate

To determine the rate of address learning of a LAN switching device.



Fig. 3.6: Address Learning Rate Test Setup

Procedure:

- 1. Send traffic with a range of MAC addresses as source addresses from tester to learning port DUT caches as many MAC addresses as possible
- 2. Send traffic with same range of MAC addresses as destination MAC addresses from tester to test port
- 3. Traffic with non-cached MAC addresses are broadcasted and reach the Monitoring port
- 4. If all MAC addresses are cached, no traffic will reach Monitoring port
- 5. Test repeats until no traffic is detected on Monitoring port

3.7 Errored Frames Filtering

Important: Supported with the exception of the Dribble Bit Errors and Alignment Errors tests.

Determine the behavior of the DUT under error or abnormal frame conditions. The results of the test indicate if the DUT/SUT filters the errors or simply propagates the errored frames along to the destination.



Fig. 3.7: Errored Frames Filtering Test Setup

3.8 Broadcast Forwarding

Determine the throughput and latency of the DUT when forwarding broadcast traffic. The ability to forward broadcast frames will depend upon a specific function built into the device for that purpose. It is therefore necessary to determine the ability of DUT/SUT to handle broadcast frames, since there may be many different ways of implementing such a function.



Fig. 3.8: Broadcast Forwarding Test Setup

FOUR

GETTING STARTED

This section will help you getting started using the Xena2889 by showing a few simple examples on how to create and to execute various tests.

4.1 Performing Rate Test (Plain Ethernet)

This example explains how to create and execute a simple rate test using two test ports.

A "rate test" is a test that focus on the throughput and forwarding aspects of the DUT. All the tests defined in **RFC 2889 #section5.1** to **RFC 2889 #section5.4** are considered to be rate tests. These tests mainly differ in terms of the used network topology and traffic direction but the basic test methodology is the same for all rate tests.

In this example we will use a **Full Mesh** topology with three test ports, using plain Ethernet traffic.

🕕 Start Page 🛛 🤹 Selected Por	ts 🛛 🍪 General Test Configuration 🛛 🥞 Tes	t Types Configuration 🔲 Protocol Segment Profiles 🛛 📳 Reporting Options	
Rate Tests	Common Options	Traffic Setup	
Part.Mesh, 1:N	Test Label: Full Mesh	Topology: Mesh \lor	
Part.Mesh, N->N Congestion Control	Duration: 30 ਦ secon	ds Direction: Bidirectional \sim	
Forward Pressure	Iterations: 1 🚔		
Maximum Forwarding Rate Address Caching Capacity	Throughput Test Options	Forwarding Test Options	
Address Learning Rate	Enable Throughput Test	Enable Forwarding Test	
Errored Frames Filtering Broadcast Forwarding	Initial Rate: 100.00 - perce	nt Start Rate: 50.00 🌩 percent	
	Minimum Rate: 0.10 perce	nt End Rate: 100.00 represent	
	Maximum Rate: 100.00 perce	nt Step Rate: 50.00 - percent	
	Resolution Rate: 0.50 - perce	nt	
	Port Name 🔺 Used?		
	🛍 P-0-3-2 (SFP+ 10G DAC)		
	🛍 P-0-3-3 (SFP+ 10G DAC)		

Fig. 4.1: Performing Rate Test (Plain Ethernet)

Perform the following steps to create and execute this test:

1. Start the Xena2889 application.

- 2. Click the *Add Chassis* button in the toolbar and enter the IP address and password of the Xena tester you want to use. Keep the default value of 22606 for the port number unless you know that your tester is configured with a different port number. Press *OK*. The Xena2889 will now connect to the chassis and display all available modules and ports in the *Physical Ports* panel to the left.
- 3. Locate three test ports that you want to use in the *Physical Ports* panel and ensure that they are connected to your DUT. Select each port in the tree view, right-click and select the *Add Port to Test Configuration* menu option in the popup menu. You can select multiple ports by holding down the Ctrl or the :kdb`Shift` button while clicking with the mouse.
- 4. Change to the *Selected Ports* panel. You should now see the three ports you selected previously. Leave each port configuration at its default value.
- 5. Change to the *General Test Configuration* panel. If you know that your DUT has a throughput that is lower than the physical port speed by several orders of magnitude you can lower the used test port rate in the *Overall Test Port Rate* section at the top-right. Otherwise you may leave the general settings at the default values.
- 6. Change to the *Test Types Configuration* panel. You will now see a tree view to the left containing all defined tests. All tests are enabled by default so you should start with clicking the *Disable All Tests* button at the bottom of the tree view (this is the button with an empty square image). You can also disable all tests by clicking the checkbox to the left of each test.
- 7. Re-enable the *Full Mesh* rate test at the top and select the entry in the tree view. This is display the test options for this test in the configuration panel to the right. Note the list at the bottom of the configuration panel which show all the selected ports.
- 8. Press the *Select All Ports* button at the bottom of the configuration panel. This will include all the selected ports in the current rate test . Leave all other configuration options at their default values.
- 9. Select the $File \rightarrow Save \dots$ menu item or press Ctrl+S in order to save your configuration. Give the configuration a suitable filename.
- 10. Press the *Start* button in the top toolbar or press Ctrl+T. The test will now start.
- 11. The *Result Data* panel at the bottom will display both progress information while the test is ongoing and also the final test results. Progress data will be shown with an italics font whereas final test results will be shown with a normal font.
- 12. Once the test completes a PDF report will be generated and shown using your default PDF viewer application.

The overall result will contain one result for the throughput test and one result for the forwarding test.

4.2 Performing Rate Test (IPv4)

This example will show how to expand the above rate test using IPv4 test traffic. It expands on the previous example so we will only describe the main differences in detail. For the sake of variety we will use a Pairs topology instead of the Full Mesh topology used in the previous example.

🕕 Start Page 🛛 🐴 Selected Po	orts 👘 Gen	eral Test Configuration 🕺 🦓 Test Typ	oes Config	uration 🛛 📄 Protoc	ol Segment Profiles	Reporting Options	- ×
Select ports in the Physical Ports pa	nel and drag the	n here to include them in the test.					
Port Name 🔺	Port Speed	IP Address	Prefix	Gateway Address	Protoco	I Segment Profile	
🛍 P-0-3-2 (SFP+ 10G DAC)	<fixed></fixed>	10.0.0.2	24	10.0.0.1	4: Ether	net / IPv4 🔍	
4 P-0-3-3 (SFP+ 10G DAC)	<fixed></fixed>	20.0.0.2	24	20.0.0.1	4: Ether	net / IPv4 🗸	
Select All Ports Deselect All P	orts 🛛 🥥 Rem	ove Port(s)					Selected Ports: 1
Main Port Properties Address Properti	es						
Physical Port Properties	P	ort Rate Cap	F	eer Negotiation			
Inter-Frame Gap: 20	÷ R	ate Cap Type: Physical Port Rate	~ E	nable Auto Negotiation:			
Speed Reduction: 0	¢ ppm R	ate Cap Value: 1000.00 + Mbit/s	N	IDI/MDIX Mode:	Auto \checkmark		
Enable PAUSE Mode:		HDATO -	E	IRR Mode:	Slave ~		
FEC Mode: Off	\sim			nable ANI T			
Latency Offset:	0 ns			I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I			
Eatonby Onact.	0 110						

Fig. 4.2: Performing Rate Test (IPv4)

- 1. Start the application, and connect to a chassis as before.
- 2. Select two test ports that are connected to a DUT that support IPv4 traffic and add them to the *Selected Ports* panel.
- 3. Change to the *Selected Ports* panel. For each port set the *Protocol Segment Profile* option to the *Ethernet / IPv4* profile.
- 4. Select the *IP Address* cell for the first port. Enter the IP address you want to assign to this port. Note that the *Gateway Address* cell is automatically initialized using an educated guess for what the gateway address might be. Change the *Prefix* and/or the *Gateway Address* cells as needed.
- 5. Configure the IP address options for the other port in a similar way.
- 6. Change the General Test Configuration options as needed.
- 7. Change to the *Test Types Configuration* panel, and disable all existing tests.

- 8. Add a new rate test by clicking on the *Add* button located at the bottom of the test tree view to the left. The new test will be enabled by default.
- 9. Set the topology to *Pairs* and the direction to *Bidirectional*.
- 10. Set both ports to be used. Set the first port role to *East* and the other port role to *West*. Pair the two ports together using the *Port Peer* column.
- 11. Save the configuration and start the test.

The overall result will contain one result for the throughput test and one result for the forwarding test.

4.3 Performing Errored Frames Filtering Test

🕕 Start Page 🛛 🐴 Selected Port	ts 🛛 🎯 General Test Configuration	🛯 🧠 Test Typ	pes Configuration 🛛 🕞 Protocol Segment Profiles 👋 📳 Reporting Options 🗎
Rate Tests Full Mesh Part.Mesh, 1:N Part.Mesh, N-NN Congestion Control Forward Pressure Maximum Forwarding Rate Address Caching Capacity Address Learning Rate Vertored Frames Filtering Broadcast Forwarding	Common Options Duration: 30 Iterations: 1 Rate Sweep Options Start Rate: 50.00 End Rate: 100.00 Step Rate: 50.00	seconds v percent percent percent percent	Test Frame Options Oversize Frames Test Enable Oversize Test: Max. Valid Frame Size: 1 bytes Undersize Frames Test Min. Valid Frame Size: 64 bytes Undersize Test Span: 1 bytes Undersize Test Span: 1 bytes
	Port Name	Used? Por	rt Role xurce v estination v

This example will show how to configure and run one of the other test types.

Fig. 4.3: Performing Errored Frames Filtering Test

- 1. Start the application, and connect to a chassis as before.
- 2. Select two test ports that are connected to a DUT and add them to the Selected Ports panel.
- 3. Change to the *Test Types Configuration* panel, and disable all existing tests, except the *Errored Frames Filtering* test.
- 4. Select both ports to be used in the test. Set one port as the *Source* and the other as the *Destination*.
- 5. Save the configuration and start the test.

The result will show the amount of frames transmitted and received in the various frame groups.

4.4 Step-By-Step Guide

4.4.1 Add Chassis

File Edit View Test Control Options	Help
🗄 🔂 📑 🜍 Add Chassis 🛶 Start 🌑 Stop	😮 Cancel 💆 Exit
Physical Ports 🛛 🗛 🗙	🕔 Start Page 🚯 Selected Ports 😚 General Test Configuration 🔍 Test Types Configuration 🔃 Protocol Segment Profiles 📳 Reporting Options 🔹 🗙
Name — 📴 Available Chassis	Valkyrie2889 [°]
	Valkyrie2889 Quick Start Guide This short guide will help you get started using Valkyrie2889.
	Add a Xena chassis to the current test configuration. Add a Xena chassis to the current test configuration. Select at least two ports in the <u>Physical Ports</u> panel at the left and drag them to the <u>Selected Ports</u> panel. In the <u>Selected Ports</u> panel you can then configure the individual properties of the ports. The <u>General Test Configuration</u> panel contains options that affect all tests. The <u>Test Types Configuration</u> panel allow you to select and configure the exact set of tests you want to perform. Use the <u>Protocol Segment Profiles</u> panel to configure the exact set of tests you want to perform. Review the reporting parameters in the <u>Beaching</u> panel and adjust these as needed. Press the <u>Start</u> button in the toolbar to start the selected tests.
	Further Assistance For further assistance please refer to the online Xena help page which you can access by either selecting the <u>Help -> Online Help</u> menu item or by pressing F1
🗉 Expand All 🖂 Collapse All	
🕅 Result Data 👹 Configuration Errors	
0/0 🖋 Idle	Test not running Test Time: 00:00:00 Duration: 00:00:00 User: demo

Click the Add Chassis button.

0	Add New Xena Chassis		×
nt ir	Chassis IP Address:	demo xenanetworks	s.com
s	Chassis Port Number:	22606	Reset to Default
	Chassis Password:	••••	
э		ОК	Cancel

Enter the IP of the Management port under *Chassis Address*. Use xena as default *Chassis Password*.

4.4.2 Add/Configure Port/s

Select the Port(s) you need to use.

- 1. Set port addresses
- 2. Configure Physical Port Properties
- 3. Choose rate cap
- 4. Configure peer negotiation (depending on the module you use, some properties are not applicable.)

Name → Available Chassis → Chassis 0 'L23 Live → Module 0, Odin-1G-3S-6P-T1- → Module 1, Odin-10G-SS-6P-CU → Module 2, Odin-10G-6S-6P → M Module 3, Odin-10G-6S-6P → M Module 3, Odin-10G-6S-6P → M Port 0, SFP+ 10G AOC → M Port 2, SFP+ 10G AOC → M Port 2, SFP+ 10G AOC	0	0	ID P-0-3-0	Used	Owner
Available Chassis Available Chassis Chassis 0 'L23 Live Chassis 0 'L23 Live Chassis 0 'L23 Live Chassis 0 'L2	0		P-0-3-0		
Chassis 0 'L23 Live Chass	0		P-0-3-0		
	0		P-0-3-0		
	0		P-0-3-0		
B - III Module 2, Odin-10G-6S-6P - III Module 3, Odin-10G-6S-6P - III Port 0, SFP+ 10G AOC - III Port 1, SFP+ 10G AOC - III Port 2, SFP+ 10G DAC	0		P-0-3-0		
□ 開業 Module 3, Odin-10G-6S-6P □ 血 Port 0, SFP+ 10G AOC □ 血 Port 1, SFP+ 10G AOC □ 血 Port 2, SFP+ 10G DAC	0		P-0-3-0		
	0		P-0-3-0		
Port 1, SFP+ 10G AOC Port 2, SFP+ 10G DAC	0				
Port 2, SFP+ 10G DAC		0	P-0-3-1		
	0	0	P-0-3-2	\sim	
Port 3, SFP+ 10G DAC	0		P-0-3-3	\sim	
E Port 4, SFP+ 10G SR 850	0	0	P-0-3-4		
Port 5, SFP+ 10G SR 850	0		P-0-3-5		
Module 4, Loki-100G-5S-2P					
Module 5, Odin-10G-6S-6P					
Module 7, Odin-1G-3S-6P					
Module 8, Odin-1G-3S-6P					
i III Module 9, Odin-1G-3S-6P					
Module 10, Odin-1G-3S-6P					
i III Module 11, Odin-1G-3S-6P					

'hysical Ports			ųΧ	🕕 Start Page 🛛 🖓 Selected F	Ports 🗇 Ge	eneral Test Configuration 🕺 🥞 Test Types C	onfiguration 🛛 🛅 Prot	tocol Segment Profiles 🛛 📒 Reporting Options	-
Name	ID	Used	Owner	Select ports in the Physical Ports p	anel and drag th	nem here to include them in the test.			
🖃 🔚 Available Chassis				Port Name	Port Speed	IR Address Pre	fix Gateway Address	Protocol Segment Profile	1
E Chassis 0 'L23 Live		-		Fort Name	- Fort Speed	IF Address Fre	IIX Galeway Address	Frotocol Segment Frome	I
E Module U, Odin-1G-3S-6P-11-		U.		E P-0-3-2 (SFP+ 10G DAC)	<tixed></tixed>	0.0.0.0 24	0.0.0.0	1: Ethernet	~
Module 1, Odin-10G-5S-6P-CU		B		## P-0-3-3 (SFP+ 10G DAC)	<fixed></fixed>	0.0.0.0 24	0.0.00	1: Ethernet	~
Minimum Module 2, Odin-10G-65-6P									
HI- WH Module 3, Udin-10G-65-6P	 0020								
th Port 0, SFF+ 10G AOC	 P-0-3-0	H							
th Bed 2 SER: 100 ACC	 P-0-3-1								
th Peet 2 SER, 10G DAC	 P-0-3-2								
ra Port 4 SEP+ 10G SP 950	 P 0 2 4								
41 Port 5 SEP+ 10G SR 850	 P.0.2.5	H							
Module 4 Loki-100G-55-2P	 1-0-3-3	ň							
Module 5. Odin-10G-6S-6P		ň							
E Module 7 Odin-1G-3S-6P		ň							
IB- Wit Module & Odin-1G-3S-6P		ň							
Module 9, Odin-1G-3S-6P		ň							
Module 10, Odin-1G-3S-6P		ŏ							
Module 11. Odin-1G-3S-6P		Ē							
				Select All Ports Deselect All	Ports 🛛 🤤 Rer	move Port(s)			Selected Po
				Main Port Properties Address Proper	ties				
				Physical Port Properties	2	Port Rate Cap 2	Peer Negotiation	4	
				Inter-Frame Gap: 2	0\$	Rate Cap Type: Physical Port Rate	Enable Auto Negotiatio	in: 🗹	
					and a	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	MDL/MDIX Mode:	Auto	
				Speed Reduction:	0 🜩 ppm	Rate Cap Value: 1000.00 🗘 Mbit/s 🗸	MDI/MDIA Mode.	Auto	
				Enable PALISE Mode:			BRR Mode:	Slave ~	
				FEC Mode: Off	~		Enable ANI T	0	
			_	FEC Mode: Off	0 ns		Enable ANLT:	0	

See also:

Check Selected Ports Panel for details.

4.4.3 Protocol Segment Profiles

File Edit View Test Control Options Help						
E Contraction Chassis → Start ● Stop 😨 C	Cancel 🗐 Exit					
Physical Ports	* *	U Start Page & Selected Ports Gene	ral Test Configuration	n 🧠 Test Ty	/pes Configuration Protocol Segment Profiles Reporting Optic	ins • X
Name ID	Used Owner	Defined Segment Header Profiles				
Chassis 0 'L23 Live		Segment Header Summary	Use Count	Value Ranges		
Module 0, Odin-1G-3S-6P-T1-		1: Ethemet	2	N/A		
B B Module 1, Odin-10G-5S-6P-CU		2: Ethernet / VLAN (0)	0	N/A		
Module 2, Odin-10G-6S-6P		3: Ethernet / VLAN (0) / VLAN (0)	0	N/A		
Module 3, Odin-10G-6S-6P		4: Ethemet / IPv4	0	N/A		
- ILI Port 0, SFP+ 10G AOC	-3-0	5: Ethemet / IPv4 / UDP (S:0/D:0)	0	N/A		
th Port I, SFP+ IUG AUC 0 P-U	H3-1	8. Ethemet / IPv8	0	N/A		
th Port 2 SEP+ 10G DAC 0 0 P-0	-3-2	7: Ethernet	0	N/A	2	
	-3-4					
La Port 5, SFP+ 10G SR 850 . P-0	-3-5					
H Module 4, Loki-100G-5S-2P	0					
Module 5, Odin-10G-6S-6P	Ō					
Image: Module 7, Odin-1G-3S-6P						
Add Protocol Segments	4 ×					
Add one or more standard segments:		1				
GMP/0_GR - ISBN-0_3 Group Record (B): GMP/0_JR - ISBN-3 Membrink Root GMP/0JB - ISBN-3 Membrink Roup L GMP/0JB - ISBN-3 Membrink Roup L IP-0 - Internet Protocol v4 (D bytes) IP-0 - Internet Protocol v4 (D bytes) ID-0 - Internet Protocol v4 (D bytes) MC/CH - MC Cortic (B bytes) MC/CH - MC Cortic (B bytes) MC/CH - MC Cortic (B bytes) MC/DY, AR - ML/Dy2 Adverse Record (DD MT) - Adverse Record (DD	tes)	Segment/Reid Name M V B III Ethernet - Ethernet II (14 bytes)	/ Raw Value		Named Values	3 Corporation Add Corporation Segment Order A More Up W More Down PCAP Import PCAP Import Import
Expand All Collapse All						-
🔠 Result Data 👹 Configuration Errors						
0/0 🛷 Ready					Test not running Test Time: 00:00:00	Duration: 00:00:00 User: demo

- 1. Add new profile.
- 2. Select the new profile.
- 3. Add additional headers.
- 4. Choose Segment.

See also:

Check Protocol Segment Profile Panel for details.

4.4.4 General Test Configuration

1. Set frame size

🕕 🖲 Start Page 🛛 🤹 Selected Ports 🛛 🗐 General Test Configuration 🛛 🥞 Test Types Config	guration 🛛 📄 Protocol Segm	ent Profiles 🛛 📳 Reporting Options
Frame Sizes	Overall Test Port Rate	
Fixed Sizes Per Trial	Fraction:	100 percent
O IETF Default 64,128,256,512,1024,1280,1518	O Frame-rate:	0 frames/sec
Custom Sizes 512	O Bit-rate (L1):	0 Mbit/s ∨
◯ Size Range Start size: 100 🖕 End size: 1500 🖨 Step size: 100 🖨	O Bit-rate (L2):	0 Mbit/s ∨
Varying Sizes Per Trial O Incrementing Min. size: 64 - Max. size: 1500 -	Resulting Rates (for average fra Port Speed Type 10G Ports Fraction: 100,000%	me size)
O Butterfly Sizes	Frames/sec: 2.35 M	
O Random Sizes	Bits/sec (L1) 10 G	
Mixed Sizes Configure	Bits/sec (L2) 9.624 G	
Misc. Options	Port Scheduling	
Use Micro-TPLD if needed: 🗌 Toggle Sync State: 🗹	Use Port Sync. Start:	
TID Alloc. Scope: Configuration Scope \lor Sync State Off Period: 1 seconds	Port Stagger Steps:	0
Latency Mode: Last-To-Last \lor Delay After Sync On: 1 😴 seconds	Resulting Delta:	N/A microseconds
Reset and Error Handling Stop on LOS: 🖉 Delay After Reset: 1 🖨 seconds Port Reset: 🖉		

4.4.5 Test Types configuration

O Start Page Selected Ports	; 🛛 🏐 General Test Con	figuration 🥵 Test Types Co	nfiguration 📄 Proto	col Segment Profiles 🛛 👔	Reporting Options	▼ ×
Rate Tests Full Mesh Part.Mesh, 1:N Part Mesh N->N	Common Options Iterations:	1	Leaming Rate Settings	1000 Fps		
Congestion Control	MAC Address Settings Test Port Address Mode:	Use Port Native MAC $\qquad \lor$	DUT Address Learning R Toggle Sync States:	eset 🗹		
Maximum Forwarding Rate Address Caching Capacity	Learn Port DMAC Mode:	Use Test Port MAC 🗸 🗸	Sync State Off Period: Delay After Sync On:	1 seconds		
Address Learning Rate Errored Frames Filtering Broadcast Forwarding	Learning Sequence: Learning Base Address:	Incrementing V	Switch Test Port Roles:			
1	Initial Count:	4096 addresses	DUT Aging Time: Misc. Options	300 seconds		
	Minimum Count: Maximum Count:	100	Fast Run Resolution:			
	Resolution Count:	100 🖨 addresses				
	Port Name P-0-3-2 (SFP+ 10G D4	∠ Used? Port Role AC) ✓ Test Port	2			
	교 P-0-3-3 (SFP+ 10G D/ 과 P-0-3-4 (SFP+ 10G SF	AC) C Learning R 850 nm) Monitorin	Port v ng Port v			
	L					

- 1. Select the test you want to run
- 2. Assign the proper port roles for each test

See also:

Check Test Types Configuration Panel for details.

4.4.6 Reporting

🕕 Start Page 🛛 🍇 Selected Ports	🚳 General Test Configuration	📲 Test Types Configuration	Protocol Segment Profiles	📑 Reporting Options
Report Identification				
Customer Name: Xena Networks				
Customer Service ID:				
Customer Access ID:				
Comments:				
			_	
			•	
Report Generation Options		Report Formats		
Report Naming		Generate PDF Report		
Report Filename Prefix:	valkyrie2889-Report	Generate XML Report		
Append Timestamp to Filename:		Also Log Intermediate Re	esults	
Report Content		Use Report Name Prefix		
Packets/Frames Terminology:	Frames \lor			
Include Module Information in Report:				
Include Detailed Port Information in Report:				
Include Charts in Report:				
Throughput Unit for Charts:	Frames/s V			
Show DONE when no PASS/FAIL criteria:				

Select the report format you want to generate.

See also:

Check Report Options Panel for details.

4.4.7 Save and Start

Start the test. Xena2889 will automatically reserver the ports and ask you to save the test configuration.

FIVE

GENERAL PANELS

The main Xena2889 application screen is shown in the image below.



Fig. 5.1: Xena2889 application screen

- At the top you find a menu bar with accesses various application-level functions. You also find a toolbar with quick shortcuts to the most used functions.
- At the left you find a tree view named "Physical Ports" showing the available Xena chassis, modules and ports.
- At the right you find a tabbed view with various application panels. These are explained below.
- At the bottom you also find a tabbed view containing a few status panels. These are also explained below.

5.1 Application Panels

• Start Page

The default main page shown to the user. This page contains a brief guide to assist you in creating an initial test configuration. You can close this panel once you feel that it is no longer useful to you.

• Selected Ports

This panel allows you to include Xena test ports in your test and to configure the behavior of these ports. You select the ports in the Physical Ports view and drag them to theSelected Ports panel to include them in the test.

General Test Configuration

This panel control the common aspects of the Test Configuration, such as frame sizes and port rates.

• Test Types Configuration

This panel control what tests you are actually going to execute and also handles the test type-specific configuration options.

• Protocol Segment Profiles

This panel allow you to create and/or configure profiles for protocol segment headers. Each port can be assigned a different protocol header so that it is possible to give each port a different set of headers.

• Reporting Options

This panel control all aspects of the reporting function.

5.2 Status Panel

• Result Data

This panel displays the test result data in a grid view. Both the progress counters and the final test data is shown. Progress counters are shown using an italics font whereas the final data is shown with a normal font.

Configuration Errors

This panel displays any configuration errors detected in your configuration when attempting to start a test.

PHYSICAL PORTS PANEL

This panel displays all available ports on the currently connected Xena chassis. It is possible to connect to multiple Xena chassis at the same time.

ysical Ports				д ,
ame		ID	Used	Owner
- 📬 Available Chassis				
🖮 🐹 Chassis 0 'L23 Live				
			ň	
Hodule 2. Odin-10G-6S-6P			ň	
Module 3 Odin-10G-6S-6P				
Port 0, SFP+ 10G AOC	0 0	P-0-3-0		
Port 1, SEP+ 10G AOC	0 0	P-0-3-1	ň	
Port 2, SFP+ 10G DAC	0 0	P-0-3-2		
Port 3, SFP+ 10G DAC	0 0	P-0-3-3	~	
Port 4, SFP+ 10G SR 850	0 0	P-0-3-4	Ō	
En Port 5, SFP+ 10G SR 850	0 0	P-0-3-5	ō	
			Õ	
			ō	
			$\overline{\bigcirc}$	
			Ō	
🗄 🗰 💶 Module 9, Odin-1G-3S-6P				
Fynand All 🕞 Collanse All				

Fig. 6.1: Physical Ports Pane

It also allows you to perform the following actions:

• View the current sync (link) and traffic state of the ports.

- View the ownership of the ports, i.e. are the ports reserved and by whom.
- Request or relinquish ownership of ports.
- Determine which ports will be used in the multicast tests.

You can reserve or relinquish ownership of a port by right-clicking on it and selecting the appropriate action.

Note: Note that the Xena2889 will automatically reserve ownership of used ports when a test is started.

SEVEN

SELECTED PORTS PANEL

This panel displays the ports that have been actively selected for use in the test configuration.

• Port Name

The name (ID and type) of the port.

• Port Speed

The physical port speed to use in the test. Normally this should be left at the default AUTO value, but certain DUTs require that the port speed is fixed to a specific rate.

• IP Address

The IP address that you want to use for the port. All ports in the configuration need an IP address.

• Prefix

The decimal network prefix for the address.

· Gateway Address

The gateway address for the assigned IP address. Usually this will be the address of the DUT port which the test port is connected to.

• Protocol Segment Profile

The protocol segment profile to use for this port. Profiles can be created, edited and deleted in the separate *Protocol Segment Profiles* panel.

Below the grid view is a section with less-frequently-used settings:

• Inter-Frame Gap

Specifies the minimum gap between frames generated for a port, expressed as a number of bytes.

• Speed Reduction

Specifies an optional speed reduction on the transmit side of the port, expressed as a ppm value.

• Enable PAUSE Mode

Controls whether the port responds to incoming PAUSE frames.

• Enable Auto Negotiation

Controls whether auto-negotiation for the port is enabled or not.

• MDI/MDIX Mode

Controls MDI/MDIX Mode

• BBR Mode

Control BroadR-Reach mode

It is possible to change settings on multiple ports at the same time by selecting multiple ports in the grid view and then changing settings in either the grid view or the detailed settings panel below the grid. The only setting that does not allow this is the IP address field, as this must always be a unique value.

GENERAL TEST CONFIGURATION PANEL

This panel controls the test options that are common for all tests. The various sections in the panel are described below.

🕕 Start Page	🐴 Selected Ports 🔇	General Test Configuration	🥞 Test Types Conf	iguration 🛛 🗍	📄 Protocol Se	gment Pr	ofiles 🛛 📑 Repoi	ting Options
Frame Sizes				Overall Test	t Port Rate			
Fixed Sizes Per Tria	a			Fraction	:	100	percent	
IETF Default	64,128,256,512,1024,128),1518		O Frame-ra	ite:	0	frames/sec	
Custom Sizes	512			O Bit-rate ((L1):	0	Mbit/s 🗸	
◯ Size Range	Start size: 100 🜩	End size: 1500 🜩 Step size:	100 🌲	O Bit-rate ((L2):	0	Mbit/s 🗸	
Varying Sizes Per T	rial			Resulting R	ates (for average	frame size	;)	
Incrementing	Min. size: 64 🌲 I	Max. size: 1500 🌲		Port Speed	Type 3G Port	s 10G P	Ports	
O Butterfly Sizes			Fra	ction: 100.000	6 100.00	00%		
Random Sizes				Frames	s/sec: 444.433	K 1.778	3 M	
			Bits/sec (L1) 2.5 G		10 (i .		
Mixed Sizes	Configure			Bits/sec	C(L2) 2.429 G	9.716	G	
Misc. Options				Port Schedu	uling			
Jse Micro-TPLD if n	eeded:	Toggle Sync State:	\sim	Use Port Sy	nc. Start:)		
TID Alloc. Scope:	Configuration Scop	e V Sync State Off Period:	1 seconds	Port Stagge	r Steps:		0 ≑	
Latency Mode:	Last-To-Last	✓ Delay After Sync On:	1 🜲 seconds	Resulting D	elta:		N/A microseconds	
Reset and Error Han	dling							
Stop on LOS: 🔽	Delay After Reset:	1 seconds Port Reset	: 🔽					
	-							

Fig. 8.1: General Test Configuration Panel

8.1 Frame Sizes

This section allows you to specify the frame sizes to be used by the various tests. The available frame size options are divided into two groups, the *Fixed Sizes Per Trial* and the *Varying Sizes Per Trial*.

As the name indicates the *Fixed Sizes Per Trial* group uses a single frame size per trial. It is possible to specify multiple frame sizes which will cause the test to be repeated for each frame size. The *Varying Sizes Per Trial* group will use many frame sizes for each trial. This is controlled by the hardware.

Note: Note that when calculating bit rates the average frame size will be used.

Note: Also note that the Errored Frames Filtering test will not used the frame size setting as it uses its own frame size setup as part of the test.

8.2 Overall Test Port Rate

This section allow you to specify the overall rate used by the tests. You can specify the rate using one of the following methods:

- A fraction (percentage) of the physical port speed
- A frame-rate (Fps) value
- A bit-rate (Bps) value at either layer 1 or layer 2.

Below the controls you can see the resulting percentages or rates for all selected port types.

Note: Note that the Address Caching Capacity and Address Learning Rate tests do not use the overall test port rate as they utilize their own rate definition. The Congestion Control and Forward Pressure tests also do not use the overall test port rate as these tests are always performed at port line speed.

8.3 Misc. Options

• Use Micro-TPLD if needed

The normal Xena test payload (*TPLD*) section takes up 20 bytes and is used for various purposes, such as latency measurements, loss and misordering monitoring, payload integrity, etc. Due to this test payload it may be impossible to make room for protocol headers such as IPv4+UDP for smaller frame sizes (e.g. ~64 byte).

By enabling this option you permit Xena2889 to use the smaller micro-TPLD if needed by the current frame size. The consequence of this will be that realtime monitoring of packet loss is no longer possible.

Note that Xena2889 will only use the micro-TPLD for a test run if the current frame size requires it. If you for instance use the default IEEE packet size distribution you may encounter that the micro-TPLD is only used for 64 byte packets but not for the other packet sizes.

• TID Alloc.Scope

Determines how Xena2889 allocates test payload identifier (TID) values.

- Configuration Scope: Allocates a unique TID value for each stream created. This
 option ensures that only packets intended for a given port is taken into account. The
 downside is that for large configurations you may quickly run out of TID values due
 to hardware constraints.
- Rx Port Scope: Allocate TIDs so that all streams received on any given port have a unique TID. TID values are reused between ports. This allow for larger configurations but the test is no longer able to detect if packets are mis-delivered by the DUT.
- Source Port ID: Allocate TIDs so that all streams from a given port is set equal to the port index in the configuration. This is a slight variation of the previous method.
- Latency Mode

Specifies the way the latency value is calculated. Refer to the description of P_LATENCYMODE in the CLI document for a description of the various values.

• Toggle Sync State

If checked the sync state for all selected ports will be toggled off and on at the start of each test trial. This is done to ensure that the DUTs MAC-tables are cleared at the start of each test.

Note that the Address Caching Capacity and Address Learning Rate tests do not use this option as they use their own definition.

• Sync State Off Period

The number of seconds to keep the port sync state off.

• Delay After Sync On

Defines how long time Xena2889 will wait after the reset before it continues with the test.

8.4 Port Scheduling

If the *Use Port Sync. Start* option is checked the *Start* button will activate a synchronized port start mechanism for the ports - if the chassis firmware version supports this feature.

The *Port Stagger Steps* property delays start of traffic generation on one port relative to pressing *Start* button. The delay is programmed in steps of 64 microseconds. The Port Stagger function works between ports on test modules installed in the same chassis.

- The 1st port will not be delayed.
- The 2nd port will be delayed with the Port Stagger Steps.
- The 3rd port will be delayed with the Port Stagger Steps * 2.
- The 4th port will be delayed with the Port Stagger Steps * 3 etc.

The maximum value of *Port Stagger Steps* for a port is 31250. Therefore the programmed *Port Stagger Steps* must not exceed 31250/(number of ports).

Note: This requires that Use Port Sync. Start has been checked.

The Resulting Delta is Port Stagger Steps * 64 microseconds

Important: Please observe that on Z800 module (Freya), you will need to uncheck the *Use Port Sync. Start* box to get Xena2889 to complete.

8.5 Reset and Error Handling

If Stop on LOS is enabled, Xena2544 will abort the test if a port loses the sync state during test.

When a Xena2544 test is started, the selected ports will be reset to ensure a known starting point for the test. The *Delay After Reset* parameter defines how long time Xena2544 will wait after the reset before it continues with the test.

If Port Reset is enabled, Xena2544 will reset the test ports when starting the test.

TEST TYPES CONFIGURATION PANEL

This panel allow you to select which tests are executed and configure their parameters.



Fig. 9.1: Test Types Configuration Panel

9.1 Selecting Tests for Execution

All available tests are shown in the tree view to the left. You can select if a test is executed by using the checkbox to the left of the test name. You can also use the two small buttons in the toolbar at the lower part of the tree view to quickly enable or disable all tests.

9.2 Configuring Test Options

To inspect and optionally change the test options for a test, select the test in the tree view. The associated test options will then be displayed in the configuration panel to the right.

Each test contains a port role configuration control at the bottom of the associated configuration panel. This control enables you to select which of the selected ports should actually be used in the test and also to configure the role that each port should play in the test.

9.2.1 Rate Tests Options

🕕 Start Page 🛛 🍇 Selected Port	ts 🗇 General Test Configuration 🛛 🍕 Test Types Configuration 🔄 Protocol Segment Profiles 📔 Reporting Options 📃 🔹
Rate Tests	Common Options Traffic Setup
Full Mesh	Test Label: Full Mesh Topology: Mesh
Part Mesh, N->N	
Congestion Control	Duration: Direction: Eldirectional
Forward Pressure	terations: 1
Maximum Forwarding Rate	Throughout Test Options Forwarding Test Options
Address Learning Capacity	Fnable Throughput Test Section 2 Enable Forwarding Test
Errored Frames Filtering	
Broadcast Forwarding	Initial Rate: 100.00 v percent Start Hate: 30.00 v percent
	Minimum Rate: 0.10 percent End Rate: 100.00 percent
	Maximum Rate: 100.00 ≑ percent Step Rate: 50.00 ≑ percent
	Resolution Pate: 0.501m percent
	Port Name 🖉 Used?
	🖴 P-0-3-0 (SFP+ 10G AOC)
	mi P-0-3-1 (SFP+ 10G AOC)
	📾 P-0-3-2 (SFP+ 10G DAC)
	🛍 P-0-3-3 (SFP+ 10G DAC)
🔘 Add 🥥 Remove 🛛 🗹	Select All Ports Unselect All Ports

Fig. 9.2: Rate Tests Options

RFC 2889 defines several types of rate tests, but these are typically not possible to execute using the same test setup as the required cabling and equipment will typically differ quite substantially. Instead the Xena2889 allow you to create and define the number of rate tests relevant for the actual DUT.

Each rate test consist of two possible subtests:

- The Throughput test, which attempts to measure the maximum zero-loss rate for the DUT. This test is an iterative test and will provide exactly one test result.
- The Forwarding test, which performs a rate sweep and measures the loss at each rate. This test provides one test result for each tested rate in the rate sweep.

You can enable either both these subtests or just one of them.
To create a new rate test press the *Add* button located at the bottom of the test tree view. You can configure both the topology and the direction for the rate test, and also set the port roles for the test.

To delete a rate test select the test and press the *Remove* button located at the bottom of the test tree view.

Common Options

• Test Label

A text label for this rate test. Use this to assign a short description of the purpose of the test.

• Duration

The duration of each test trial in seconds.

• Iterations

The number of times to repeat each test trial with the same set of test parameters.

Traffic Setup

• Topology

The topology of the test traffic:

- Mesh

All test ports send traffic to all other test ports. The Direction option is ignored as Mesh traffic is always bidirectional. * Blocks

Each test port is placed in either the East or the West block. Every port in the transmitting block sends traffic to every port in the other block. The Direction option determines if only one block or both will be transmitting. * Pairs

Each test port is placed in either the East or the West block. Then the ports are paired together two and two. Traffic is only flowing between paired ports. The Direction option determines which ports will be transmitting.

• Direction

Determines the direction of the test traffic.

Throughput Test Options

• Enable Throughput Test

If checked the Throughput test will be executed. This is an iterative test that will find the largest throughput rate with zero loss for the DUT.

• Initial Rate

The starting rate to use. This is specified as a percentage of the overall port rate defined in the general test options panel.

• Maximum Rate

The maximum rate to use. This is specified as a percentage of the overall port rate.

• Minimum Rate

The minimum rate to use. This is specified as a percentage of the overall port rate. If the iteration reaches this value the test is stopped and the result will be FAILed.

• Resolution Rate

The trial stops when the difference between the current and the last successful trial is less than the Resolution.

Forwarding Test Options

• Enable Forwarding Test

If checked the Forwarding test will be executed. This is a rate sweep test that will measure the forwarding rate and the loss for the DUT at various transmit rates.

• Start Rate

The starting rate percentage used in the test.

• End Rate

The ending rate percentage used in the test.

• Step Rate

The rate step increment.

Port Role Configuration

• Used?

If checked the port will be used in this test.

• Port Role

Used to place the port in either the East or the West block. Only available when Topology is either Blocks and Pairs

• Port Peer

Used to pair the port with another port. Only available when Topology is Pairs.

9.2.2 Congestion Control Test Options

🕕 Start Page 🛛 🍇 Selected Po	Ports 🛛 🎱 General Test Configuration 🛛 🧠 Test Types Configuration 🛛 📑 Protocol Segment Profiles 🛛 🔃 Reporting Options	• X
Rate Tests	Common Onlions	
Full Mesh	Duration: 30 1 consider	
Part.Mesh, 1:N	Durauori. Su securius	
Part.Mesh, N->N	Iterations: 1	
Congestion Control		
Maximum Forwarding Rate	Port Name / Used? Port Role	
Address Caching Capacity	A P-0-3-0 (SFP+ 10G AOC)	
Address Learning Rate	📫 P-0-3-1 (SFP+ 10G AOC) 🥑 Destination 🖂	
Errored Frames Filtering	📫 P-0-3-2 (SFP+ 10G DAC) 💋 Source 🗸	
Broadcast Forwarding	tal P-0-3-3 (SFP+ 10G DAC)	
🔘 Add 🔘 Remove 🗹 🗖	Select All Ports Unselect All Ports	
	11	

Fig. 9.3: Congestion Control Test Options

Common Options

• Duration

The duration of each test trial in seconds.

• Iterations

The number of times to repeat each test trial with the same set of test parameters.

Port Role Configuration

• Used?

If checked the port will be used in this test.

• Port Role

Used to place the port in either Source or Destination.

9.2.3 Forward Pressure Test Options

🕕 Start Page 🛛 🚳 Selected Por	ts 🤍 General Test Configuration	🛛 🥞 Test Types Configuration 🛛 📋 Protocol Segment Profiles 🛛 📳 Reporting Options	• ×
🛃 Rate Tests	Common Options	Test Options	
Full Mesh	Duration 20		
Part.Mesh, 1:N	Duration: 30	v seconds interframe Gap Detta: 1 bytes	
Part.Mesh, N->N	Iterations: 1	Accept. Rx Util.Delta: 0.001 + percent	
Congestion Control			
Maximum Featurating Pate	Port Name	△ Used? Port Role	
Address Cashing Capacity	血 P-0-3-0 (SFP+ 10G AOC)	Source V	
Address Learning Rate	4 P-0-3-1 (SFP+ 10G AOC)	Source	
Errored Frames Filtering	64 P-0-3-2 (SEP+ 10G DAC)	Source V	
Broadcast Forwarding	44 B 0 2 2 (SEP, 10G DAC)		
		Destination V	
🕜 Add 💿 Remove 🛛 🗖	Select All Ports 🔲 Unselect All P	II Ports	

Fig. 9.4: Forward Pressure Test Options

Common Options

• Duration

The duration of each test trial in seconds.

• Iterations

The number of times to repeat each test trial with the same set of test parameters.

Test Options

• Interframe Gap Delta

The difference between the default inter-frame Gap (IFG) value of 20 bytes and the reduced value used on the source port.

• Accept. Rx Util. Delta

The acceptable receive rate utilization delta, i.e. the value with which the receive rate is allowed to exceed 100.0%.

Port Role Configuration

• Used?

If checked the port will be used in this test.

• Port Role

Used to place the port in either Source or Destination.

Note: Only one source and one destination are allowed in this test.

9.2.4 Maximum Forwarding Rate Test Options

🕕 Start Page 🛛 🚳 Selected Port	orts 🛛 🎯 General Test Configuration 🛛 🍓 Test Types Configuration 🛛 📑 Protocol Segment Profiles 👔 📳 Reporting Options	. ×
Rate Tests	Common Options Rate Sweep Options	
Full Mesh	Duration: 30 seconds Start Bate: 10.00 percent	
Part Mesh, 1:N		
Concestion Control	Iterations: 1 - End Rate: 100.00 - percent	
Eorward Pressure	Step Rate: 1.00 C	
Maximum Forwarding Rate		
Address Caching Capacity	Innougriput as start.	
Address Learning Rate	Port Name 🔶 Used? Port Role	
Errored Frames Filtering	tal P-0-3-0 (SEP+ 10G AOC)	
Broadcast Forwarding		
	P-0-32 (SPF+ IUD DAC)	
	AP-0-3-3 (SFP+ 10G DAC)	
📀 Add 💿 Remove 🛛 🗖	Select All Ports Unselect All Ports	

Fig. 9.5: Maximum Forwarding Rate Test Options

Common Options

• Duration

The duration of each test trial in seconds.

• Iterations

The number of times to repeat each test trial with the same set of test parameters.

Rate Sweep Options

• Start Rate

The starting rate percentage used in the test.

• End Rate

The ending rate percentage used in the test.

• Step Rate

The rate step increment.

• Throughput as Start

Use a previously measured throughput value as a start rate if available for the current frame size.

Port Role Configuration

• Used?

If checked the port will be used in this test.

• Port Role

Used to place the port in either Source or Destination.

Note: Only one source and one destination are allowed in this test.

9.2.5 Address Caching Capacity Test Options

Common Options

• Iterations

The number of times to repeat each test trial with the same set of test parameters.

MAC Address Settings

• Test Port Address Mode

Defines how to generate the test port MAC address.

• Learn Port DMAC Mode

Defines how to generate DMAC address in frames from the learning port.

• Learning Sequence

Select how the MAC address learning sequence is scheduled.

🕕 Start Page 🛛 🦓 Selected Ports	s 🛛 🎯 General Test Config	juration 🛛 🍓 T	est Types Co	nfiguration 🛛 📄 Proto	col Segment Pro	files 🛛	Reporting Options	• X
Rate Tests	Common Options			Learning Rate Settings				
Full Mesh	terations:	1 🚔		Learning Bate	1000	Fns		
Part Mesh, I:N		•						
Congestion Control	MAC Address Settings			DUT Address Learning F	Reset			
Forward Pressure	Test Port Address Mode: U	Jse Port Native M	AC V	Toggle Sync States:	\sim			
Maximum Forwarding Rate	Learn Port DMAC Mode: U	Jse Test Port MAC	~	Sync State Off Period:	1	seconds		
Address Learning Rate	Learning Sequence: Ir	ncrementing	~	Delay After Sync On:	0	seconds		
Errored Frames Filtering Broadcast Forwarding	Learning Base Address: 0	02 F4 BC		Switch Test Port Roles:				
-	Initial Count:	4096 🚔 ad	dresses	DUT Aging Time:	300	seconds		
	Minimum Count:	100 🌲 ad	dresses	Misc. Options	-			
	Maximum Count:	65535 ad	draesae	Fast Run Resolution:				
	Resolution Count:	100 - ad	dresses					
	Deat Name	<u>الحا</u> 4 العدة	Dent Date				7	
	4 P-0-3-0 (SFP+ 10G AOC)) 🗸 🗸	Monitorin	a Port				
	4 P-0-3-1 (SFP+ 10G AOC))) Test Port	t V				
	曲 P-0-3-2 (SFP+ 10G DAC)) 🖉	Test Port	t 🗸				
	📾 P-0-3-3 (SFP+ 10G DAC)) 🖉	Learning	Port 🗸				
🔾 Add 🔘 Remove 🗹 🗖	Select All Ports Uns	select All Ports						

Fig. 9.6: Address Caching Capacity Test Options

• Learning Base Address

The first 3 bytes of the MAC addresses used for the learning test. It is necessary to use a different base address than the default Xena base address (04.F4.BC) when running a test using multiple addresses to avoid conflicts with other unused ports on the Xena tester.

• Initial Count

The starting address count to use.

• Maximum Count

The maximum address count to use.

• Minimum Count

The minimum address count to use. If the trial reaches this value the test is stopped and the result will be FAILed.

• Resolution Count

The trial stops when the difference between the current and the last successful trial is less than the Resolution.

Learning Rate Settings

• Learning Rate

The learning rate in frames/second to use.

DUT Address Learning Reset

• Toggle Sync States

If checked the sync state of the test ports will be toggled off and on between test trials. Enabling this may help clearing the MAC learning tables in the DUT and speed up the test.

• Sync State Off Period

The amount of seconds the port sync states will be off.

• Delay After Sync On

Defines how long time Xena2889 will wait after the reset before it continues with the test.

• Switch Test Port Roles

If checked the port with the Test and Learning roles will be swapped between test trials. Enabling this may help clearing the MAC learning tables in the DUT and speed up the test.

• DUT Aging Time

If none of the two options above are checked the test will wait for the specified seconds between trials to ensure that the MAC table in the DUT has been cleared.

Misc. Options

• Fast Run Resolution

Enable this option to perform fast resolution of a test run based on polled data.

Port Role Configuration

• Used?

If checked the port will be used in this test.

• Port Role

Used to place the port in Test Port, Learning Port, or Monitoring Port.

Note: Only one test port, one learning port and one monitoring port are allowed in this test.

9.2.6 Address Learning Rate Test Options

🕕 Start Page 🛛 🍇 Selected Port	s 🤍 General Test Configuration 🛯 🍓 Test Types Configuration 🔄 Protocol Segment Profiles 🛛 📳 Reporting Options 🖉 🕶 🗙
Rate Tests	Common Options Learning Rate Settings
Part Mesh	Iterations: 1 + Base Learning Rate: 1000 Fps
Part.Mesh, N->N	MAC Address Cartings
Congestion Control	
Maximum Forwarding Bate	Test Port Address Mode: Use Port Native MAL V Minimum Hate: U.UV percent
Address Caching Capacity	Leam Port DMAC Mode: Use Test Port MAC V Maximum Rate: 100.00 C percent
Address Learning Rate	Learning Sequence: Incrementing V Resolution Rate: 0.60 🖨 percent
Errored Frames Filtering	Lawing Base Address: 0.2 EA. B.C. DUIT Address Lawing Baset
Broadcast Polwarding	Comming date rubrics. 2 14 20 DU hudress Earling need
	Start Count: 13107⊕ addresses
	End Count: 65535 addresses Sync Suite On Pendu.
	Step Count: 13107 🖨 addresses Delay After Sync On: 0 😴 seconds
	Only Use Max. Capacity: Switch Test Port Roles:
	Set End = Max Capacity: DUT Aging Time: 300 seconds
	A De 2 A (SEP. 106 AOC) Medica Part
	a Po-31 (SFP 106 AOC) Minimized The Post
	P-0-3-3 (SFP+ 10G DAC)
🔾 Add 🔘 Remove 🗹 🗖	☑ Select All Ports □ Unselect All Ports

Fig. 9.7: Address Learning Rate Test Options

Common Options

• Iterations

The number of times to repeat each test trial with the same set of test parameters.

MAC Address Settings

• Test Port Address Mode

Defines how to generate the test port MAC address.

• Learn Port DMAC Mode

Defines how to generate DMAC address in frames from the learning port.

• Learning Sequence

Select how the MAC address learning sequence is scheduled.

• Learning Base Address

The first 3 bytes of the MAC addresses used for the learning test. It is necessary to use a different base address than the default Xena base address (04.F4.BC) when running a test using multiple addresses to avoid conflicts with other unused ports on the Xena tester.

• Start Count

The starting number of addresses used in the test.

• End Count

The ending number of addresses used in the test.

• Step Count

The address count step increment.

• Only Use Max. Capacity

If checked the test will ignore the start, end and step options and only run the test at the max. capacity. This option is only used if an Address Caching Capacity test has previously been run as part of the same test and a capacity test result has been found for the frame size in question. Otherwise the test will default to use the start, end and step options.

• Set End = Max. Capacity

If checked the test will ignore the end count option value and use the max. capacity value instead. This option is only used if an Address Caching Capacity test has previously been run as part of the same test and a capacity test result has been found for the frame size in question. Otherwise the test will default to use the end option value.

Learning Rate Settings

• Base Learning Rate

The basic (i.e. maximum) learning rate used in frames/second. Note that the general port rate defined for the test configuration is ignored for this test.

• Initial Rate

The starting rate to use. This is specified as a percentage of the base learning rate.

• Maximum Rate

The maximum rate to use. This is specified as a percentage of the base learning rate and will typically be 100%.

• Minimum Rate

The minimum rate to use. This is specified as a percentage of the base learning rate. If the trial reaches this value the test is stopped and the result will be FAILed.

• Resolution Rate

The trial stops when the difference between the current and the last successful trial is less than the Resolution.

DUT Address Learning Reset

• Toggle Sync States

If checked the sync state of the test ports will be toggled off and on between test trials. Enabling this may help clearing the MAC learning tables in the DUT and speed up the test.

• Sync State Off Period

The amount of seconds the port sync states will be off.

• Delay After Sync On

Defines how long time Xena2889 will wait after the reset before it continues with the test.

• Switch Test Port Roles

If checked the port with the Test and Learning roles will be swapped between test trials. Enabling this may help clearing the MAC learning tables in the DUT and speed up the test.

• DUT Aging Time

If none of the two options above are checked the test will wait for the specified seconds between trials to ensure that the MAC table in the DUT has been cleared.

Port Role Configuration

• Used?

If checked the port will be used in this test.

• Port Role

Used to place the port in Test Port, Learning Port, or Monitoring Port.

Note: Only one test port, one learning port and one monitoring port are allowed in this test.

9.2.7 Errored Frames Filtering Test Options

Common Options

• Duration

The duration of each test trial in seconds.

• Iterations

The number of times to repeat each test trial with the same set of test parameters.

🕕 Start Page 🛛 🤹 Selected Ports	s 🛛 🇐 General Test Confi	iguration	🍓 Test	Types Configuration 🗋 📄 Protocol Segment Profiles 🎽 📳 Reporting Options
Rate Tests	Common Options			Test Frame Options
Part Mesh	Duration:	30 🌲	second	s Oversize Frames Test
Part.Mesh, N->N	Iterations:	1	1	Enable Oversize Test:
Congestion Control	iteratione.		1	Max. Valid Frame Size: 1518 bytes
Forward Pressure	Rate Sweep Options			
Maximum Forwarding Rate	Start Rate:	50.00 🌲	percent	t Oversize Test Span:
Address Caching Capacity	End Rate:	100.00 🜲	percent	Undersize Frames Test
Errored Frames Filtering		F0.00 +	1	Min. Valid Frame Size: 64 bytes
Broadcast Forwarding	Step Rate:	50.00	percent	
				Undersize Test Span:
	Port Name	<u>ک</u>	Used?	Port Role
	山 P-0-3-0 (SFP+ 10G AOC	C)		Source 🗸
	🛍 P-0-3-1 (SFP+ 10G AOC	C)		Source 🗸
	🛍 P-0-3-2 (SFP+ 10G DAG	C)	\sim	Source 🗸
	4 P-0-3-3 (SFP+ 10G DAC	C)	\sim	Destination 🗸
I	1			

Fig. 9.8: Errored Frames Filtering Test Options

Rate Sweep Options

• Start Rate

The start rate to use in percent of the overall port rate defined.

• End Rate

The end rate to use in percent of the overall port rate defined.

• Step Rate

The step rate to use in percent of the overall port rate defined.

Test Frame Options

• Enable Oversize Test

If checked the oversize frames test will be performed. You can disable this if your DUT generally supports very large frame sizes and you don't want to bother testing this.

• Max. Valid Frame Size

The maximum valid frame size you believe your DUT should support.

• Oversize Test Span

The number of oversize frame sizes to use in the test. The frame sizes used will be in the range [max. valid size + 1, max. valid size + span].

• Min. Valid Frame Size

The minimum valid frame size you believe your DUT should support. This value should typically be 64.

• Undersize Test Span

The number of undersize frame sizes to use in the test. The frame sizes used will be in the range [min. valid size-1, min. valid size-span].

Port Role Configuration

• Used?

If checked the port will be used in this test.

• Port Role

Used to place the port in either Source or Destination.

Note: Only one source and one destination are allowed in this test.

9.2.8 Broadcast Forwarding Test Options

Start Page	4 Selected Port	s 🛛 🎯 General Test Con	figuration	🍓 Test	Types Conf	iguration	Protocol Segme	ent Profiles	Reporting Options
Rate Tests Full Mesh Part.Mesh, 1: Part.Mesh, N: Congestion Cont Forward Pressur	:N I->N irol	Common Options Duration: Iterations:	30 -	second	ds Initial Minim Maxin	ghput Test (Rate: um Rate: um Rate:	Options	percent percent percent	
Address Learnin	rding Rate g Capacity g Rate			1	Resol	ution Rate:	0.50 🌲	percent	
Errored Frames	Filtering	Port Name	<u> </u>	Used?	Port Role				
🖉 Broadcast Forwa	arding	🛍 P-0-3-0 (SFP+ 10G AC)C)	\sim	Destination	\sim			
		🛍 P-0-3-1 (SFP+ 10G AC)C)	 Image: A set of the set of the	Destination				
		曲 P-0-3-2 (SFP+ 10G D/	AC)	 Image: A set of the set of the	Source	\sim			
		血 P-0-3-3 (SFP+ 10G DA	AC)		Destination				

Fig. 9.9: Broadcast Forwarding Test Options

Common Options

• Duration

The duration of each test trial in seconds.

• Iterations

The number of times to repeat each test trial with the same set of test parameters.

Throughput Test Options

• Initial Rate

The starting rate to use. This is specified as a percentage of the overall port rate defined in the general test options panel.

• Maximum Rate

The maximum rate to use. This is specified as a percentage of the overall port rate.

• Minimum Rate

The minimum rate to use. This is specified as a percentage of the overall port rate. If the iteration reaches this value the test is stopped and the result will be FAILed.

• Resolution Rate

The trial stops when the difference between the current and the last successful trial is less than the Resolution.

Port Role Configuration

• Used?

If checked the port will be used in this test.

• Port Role

Used to place the port in either Source or Destination.

Note: Only one source and one destination are allowed in this test.

PROTOCOL SEGMENT PROFILE PANEL

This panel allow you to configure the protocol segment profiles used by the test ports. You can either use a single common profile for all ports or use a separate profile for each port. In this way you can define an asymmetric traffic setup.

10.1 Available Profiles List

The list view at the top show all defined profiles.

🕕 Start Page 🛛 🦓 Test Configuration	🛶 S	elect	ted Ports 🛛 🤿	Multi-Stream	Configuration	Protocol Segment Profiles 📳 Reporting Options		• 3
Defined Segment Header Profiles								
Segment Header Summary			Use Count	Modifiers	Value Range	3		
3: Ethernet / VLAN (0) / VLAN (0)			0	0	0			
4: Ethernet / IPv4			0	0	0			
5: Ethemet / IPv4 / UDP (S:0/D:0)			0	0	0			· · · ·
6: Ethernet / IPv6			0	0	0			
Add Profile Remove Profile								Restore Default Profiles
Segment/Field Name	М	VF	Raw Value		Named \	alues	5	egments
Ethernet - Ethernet II (14 bytes)								Add
							(Remove
□ II UDP - User Datagram Protocol (8 bytes)								Segment Order
Src Port (16 bit)		0)		None	•		
Dest Port (16 bit)		0)		None	•		 Move Up
DEC Length (16 bit)		0)					Move Down
HEX Checksum (16 bit)		0	00 00				ŀ	IW Modifiers
								🛃 Add
							0	Edit
							(r	Remove
							Ŋ	/alue Ranges
								🖳 Add
							ſ	😰 Edit
							0	Remove
								CAP Import

Fig.	10.1:	Protocol	segment	profiles
ω			0	1

10.1.1 Managing Profiles

You can create and delete profiles to match the need of the current test scenario. To create a new profile press the *Add Profile* button. To delete a profile select it in the list view and press the *Remove Profile* button.

You can however not delete a profile that is currently being used by a test port. You can see the number of test ports currently using a profile in the *Use Count* column in the list view at the top. To delete a profile that is in use you will first have to reassign all ports currently using that profile to another profile.

10.1.2 Default Profiles

When you create a new Xena2889 configuration it will be populated with a number of default profiles. You can however freely modify and even delete one or more of the default profiles.

If for some reason you want to restore the default profiles you can press the *Restore Default Profiles* button. This will unconditionally remove all current profiles (also those that are in use) and restore the default set. All test ports will be associated with the first default "Ethernet-only" profile.

10.2 Profile Editor

You can edit each profile by selecting it in the top list view and using the tree view control below.

10.2.1 Add and Remove Segment Headers

To add a new segment header press the *Add* button in the Segments section to the right. You will then be presented with a dialog listing all built-in segment types from which you can select one or more types to be included. If you want to use a segment not currently supported by the Xena2889 you can add a raw segment and specify the length in bytes. You can then afterwards edit the values in the resulting segment using the hex editor at the bottom.

You can remove one or more segments by selecting them and pressing the *Remove* button in the Segments section. You can change the order in which the segment headers appear by using the *Move Up/Down* buttons.

The Xena2889 will automatically adjust the value of any standard ""next-protocol" field (such as the EtherType field) in the segment headers when other segments are added, removed or moved.

10.2.2 Editing Field Values

The segment editor provides a tree view similar to the one found in the Wireshark protocol analyzer. You can thus expand each segment branch to view and optionally modify the various field values. Each field title is preceded with a small icon indicating the type of field value (decimal, hexadecimal, binary or IPv4/IPv6 address).

Certain fields, such as the EtherType, are associated with a set of commonly used named values. These can be selected in the Named Values column. You are however free to enter any value you want in the Raw Value column.

You can also edit the hex value of the segment headers directly using the hex editor at the bottom if you are so inclined.

10.2.3 MAC and IP Addresses

The address fields in the Ethernet and IP section headers will usually be overridden by the Xena2889 when the test streams are created:

The Source MAC (SMAC) address field in the first Ethernet segment will be set to the MAC address of the source port.

The Destination MAC (DMAC) address field in the first Ethernet segment will be set to the MAC address of the destination port. If an IP segment has been defined and a gateway IP address is defined for a source port, the Xena2889 will however attempt to resolve the MAC address of the gateway using ARP or NDP and wil then use this MAC address as the DMAC.

The IP Source/Destination Address fields in the IP segment header will be set to the values configured on the ports, as explained in the Selected Ports panel section above.

This replacement will however only be performed if you leave the fields at their default (all-zeros) value. If you specify anything else this value will be used instead.

10.3 Modifiers

It is possible to attach a modifier definition to one or more fields. A modifier will exercise the field with various values during the test and can be used to emulate a certain dynamic behavior. Modifiers are often used to exercise either the VLAN PCP or the IP DHCP fields. Alternatively one could apply modifiers to address fields like the DMAC field or the source or destination IP address fields.

10.3.1 Adding a Modifier

To add a modifier to a field simply select the field and press the *Add Modifier* button in the command panel to the right or right-click and select the *Add Modifier* popup menu option. A *Create New Modifier* dialog will now be shown. The content of the dialog will depend on the type of field. Most fields will use the *Basic Modifier* dialog shown below to the left. If the selected field is an IP address the *IP Modifier* dialog shown below to the right will be used instead.

Cadd ype (1	Basic Modifie	Settinge			
net Pr	Start Value:	0	Action:	Increment v	
rt (16 l	Step Value:	1	Position:	0	
ort (16	Stop Value:	65535	Mask:	FF FF	
sum (1	Repeat:	1			
				ОК	Cancel

Fig. 10.2: Basic modifier

C add	Consta Nam LINA Mar	1.6			
C add	Create New HW Mod	difier			
pe (1	IPv4 Address Modifier				
iet Pr (4 bi	Resulting Pattern:	0.0.	XXX . XXX		
Leng	Modifier Start Value:	0 🜩	Address Offset:	2 🌲	
5 bit) bit)	Modifier Step Value:	1	Address Mask:	255.255	ffort
ngth	Modifier Count:	10 🌲	Modifier Action:	Increment ~	
ation	Repeat Count:	1 🜲			
l bit)					
nt Of					
oit)					
l (8 b			OK	Cancel	
Chec	Nouni (io biy	00			9

Fig. 10.3: IP modifier

Fill in the various field values and press the OK button to add the modifier to the field. Once a modifier has been added to a field this will be indicated by a small blue M icon as shown in the screenshot above.

10.3.2 Editing a Modifier

To edit an existing modifier either select the field and press the Edit Modifier button in the command panel to the right, or right-click and select the Edit Modifier popup menu option. You will see the same dialog as was used to create the modifier.

10.3.3 Removing a Modifier

If you want to remove a modifier from a field simply select the field and press the Remove Modifier button in the command panel to the right, or right-click and select the Remove Modifier popup menu option.

10.3.4 Limitations

There is a limitation on the maximum number of modifiers that can be defined for each test stream. The limitation is specific for the test module type to which the port belong. Refer to the Xena Test Module Comparison Page for further details.

10.4 Value Ranges

otocol v4 (20 bytes)		
t) Create New Value Range		
th (Start Value:	Action:	t effori
Step Value: 1	Restart For Each Port:	
(16 Stop Value: 255		
	OK Cancel	
fset (13 bit)	0	

Fig. 10.4: Value Ranges

A Value Range is intended to exercise one or more fields in a Xena2889 protocol segment profiles with varying values. It is kind of similar to the hardware modifier explained above, with the following differences:

- A Modifier is handled by hardware and varies a field value between packets on the same stream.
- A Value Range is handled by software and varies a field value between different streams. All packets on the same stream have the same value.
- A Value Range is defined on a field in a protocol segment profile, just like a modifier. It will then be used for all streams created on a port which is assigned this profile.
- Value ranges can be used for both normal single-stream and advanced multi-stream scenarios. For normal scenarios it is most applicable for mesh configurations where multiple streams will be created on each port.

There is no limit to the number of values ranges added to a configuration. It is also possible to add both a modifier and a value range to a field. Whether that would yield usable results is unclear but it might be useful for larger fields.

10.5 PCAP Import

You can import the protocol segment structure from a PCAP file captured using Wireshark or any other capture application capable of generating a standard PCAP file. If the file contains multiple packets Xena2889 will display a list allowing you to select the desired packet.

Xena2889 will attempt to decode the packet and display the known protocol headers and their fields. Any unknown fields will be displayed as a raw segment. As there are limitations in the max.size of a custom segment the import may not be possible in some cases. The import dialog will inform you about this if the situation arises.

ELEVEN

REPORT OPTIONS PANEL

The Reporting Options panel contains a number of options that affect the way reports are generated for the test.

11.1 Report Identification

This section contains a number of options that can help identify the test context.

• Customer Name

The name of the customer for which the test is performed.

• Customer Service/Access Id

These two options allow you to provide details about the network circuits you are testing.

• Comments

Allows you to provide any multi-line comments for the test configuration.

11.2 Report Generation Options

This section contains options that affect the way reports are generated.

11.2.1 Report Naming

• Report Filename Prefix

Specifies the prefix for the report filename.

• Append Timestamp to Filename

If checked a timestamp on the form <YYYYMMDD-HHMMSS> is appended to the filename prefix.

11.2.2 Report Content

• Packets/Frames Terminology

This property allows you to determine whether the units of data are referred to as packets or frames.

• Include Module Information in Report

If checked the report will also contain information for each module.

• Include Detailed Port Information in Report

If checked the report will also contain detailed results for each port. If unchecked only the totals will be reported.

• Include Stream Information in Report

If checked the per-stream information will also be included in the reports.

• Include Charts in Report

If checked the report will include bar charts showing the test results. This is only applicable for PDF type reports.

• Throughput Unit for Charts

Use this to select whether to use frames/second ot bits/second as the unit for throughput charts.

11.3 Report Formats

This section allows you to select which types of reports will be generated. You can enable several types. The generated report files will be given a file extension that matches the selected type, i.e. .pdf for PDF files and so forth.

11.3.1 XML Report Specification

You can find the specification for the XML Report here.

In the Report formats section you can also activate the *Also Log Intermediate Results* option. It will log intermediate results for each test type to separate CSV log files (one for each enabled test type) located in the Result Log subdirectory in the main Xena2889 Reports directory. If you check *Add Timestamp For Each Line* each line in the Intermediate Results file will include a timestamp. If you check *Use Report Name Prefix* the *Report Name Prefix* will also be used for naming of the intermediate result files.

TWELVE

RESULT DATA PANEL

The Result Data panel will display both polled progress data and result data for the tests being executed in a grid view. Each result will be shown in a single line in the grid.

The polled progress data is updated periodically while the current test trial is executing and will be shown with an italics font. After the test trial has completed the result data for that trial will be calculated and shown with a normal font.

Result Data -= X																						
🔁 Throughput: Full Meeh																						
Totals									Port: P-0-3-2						Port: P-0-3-3							
Frame Size	Result State	lter, #	Tx Rate (Percent)	Tx Rate (L1) (Bit/s)	Tx Rate (Fps)	Rx Rate (Percent)	Rx Rate (L1) (Bit/s)	Rx Rate (Fps)	Loss Rate (Percent)	Loss (Frames)	Tx (Frames)	Tx Rate (L1) (Bit/s)	Tx Rate (Fps)	Rx (Frames)	Rx Rate (L1) (Bit/s)	Rx Rate (Fps)	Flood Count (Frames)	Tx (Frames)	Tx Rate (L1) (Bit/s)	Tx Rate (Fps)	Rx (Frames)	Rx Rate (L1) (Bit/s)
64	PASS	1	100 %	20 G	29,761,905	100 %	20 G	29.76 M	0 %	0	148,809,523	10 G	14,880,952	148,809,523	10 G	14,880,952	0	148,809,523	10 G	14,880,952	148,809,523	10 G
128	PASS	1	100 %	20 G	16,891,892	100 %	20 G	16.89 M	0 %	0	84,459,459	10 G	8,445,946	84,459,459	10 G	8,445,946	0	84,459,459	10 G	8,445,946	84,459,459	10 G
256	(pending)	1	100 %	9.68 G	4,385,728	100 %	9.68 G	4.39 M	0%	0	45,289,855	4.55 G	2,059,977	45,289,855	5.3 G	2,398,379	0	45,289,855	5.14 G	2,325,751	45,289,855	4.39 G
E Result Data / 🕸 Configuration Errors																						
0/0 🔀 Traff	0/0 🔀 Traffic on source port(s) started									Test is running Test Time: 00:01:04 Duration: 00:00:11 User: de							Jser: demo					

The *Result State* column will shown the state of the current trial run. While the test trial is in progress the state will always be (*pending*). A trial result may be final in which case the column will show either **PASS** or **FAIL**, depending on the test outcome. If the test needs to perform another iteration the state will again be (*pending*).

The columns used will depend of the test being performed. Most tests will provide a set of totals values and a set of per-port values but as stated this depends on the test.

Most cell values will be displayed using the normal font color. Values that indicate an error, such as a non-zero loss value, will be displayed with a red font color.

THIRTEEN

CONFIGURATION ERRORS PANEL

This panel will show any configuration errors detected by the program when you attempt to execute a configuration. If any such errors are found the panel will be shown and the execution attempt will be aborted. You will have to correct any reported errors before the program will allow you to execute the configuration.

Configuration Errors								
I Please correct the errors listed below before starting the test.								
Erry Manager	Reasona ID							
A used part must be pasigned a group role	Pate Test Part Mesh 1:N							
A used port must be assigned a group role	Rate Test: Part.Mesh, 1:N							
At least one port must be assigned to each of the two group roles	Rate Test: Part.Mesh, 1:N							
A used port must be assigned a group role	Rate Test: Part.Mesh, N->N							
		Navigate to source						
		Hangate to source						
Result Data 🐗 Configuration Errors								
0/0 🖋 Test cancelled by user		i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i						

Fig. 13.1: Configuration errors panel

Each error will be shown in a separate line in the panel. If you double-click on an error message you will be taken to the relevant configuration panel that will allow you to correct the error.

This panel is by default found in the lower auto-hiding panel group. By "auto-hiding" we mean that the panel is initially hidden but will popup either if the panel tab is clicked or if the application decides that it is necessary to direct the attention of the user to the panel. You can make the panel visible always by clicking the little "pin" icon in the top-right of the panel header.

FOURTEEN

APPLICATION SETTINGS

The xena2889 application features a number of application-level settings which are valid for all test configurations. These can be accessed in the Options menu item as shown in the figure below.

• Set Username

Allows you to specify the username used when logging in to the Xena testers. The default value will be your Windows username (shortened to 8 characters if longer).

• Ask to Relinquish Ports

If checked the xena2889 will prompt you when you try to use a port which is currently reserved by someone else. If unchecked the xena2889 will unceremoniously relinquish the port and reserve it in your name.

• Open Last Configuration On Start

If checked the configuration you had open when you last closed the application will automatically be opened the next time you start the application.

• Set Reports Path

Allows you to specify a different location for the generated reports. The default location is <**ProgramData**>/XenaNetworks/xena2889/Reports. The location of <**ProgramData**> varies between versions of Windows but can be obtained by inspecting the environment variable **ProgramData**.

• Set Tester Company Name

Allows you to set the name of the company performing the tests. The default value is "Xena Networks".

• Set Tester Company Logo File

Allows you to specify the path to an image file which will be used as the logo in the reports. The default logo is the Xena Networks logo. The image can be in PNG or JPG format. It should have the approximate dimensions of 150×60 pixels and be set to a DPI of 96.

• Open Report in Associated Viewer

If checked the xena2889 will attempt to open the generated report in the associated viewer. This is currently only applicable for PDF reports. This requires that a suitable PDF viewer

(such as the Adobe Acrobat Reader) is installed on your PC.

FIFTEEN

TROUBLESHOOTING

This section contains some guidelines when you encounter a problem with Xena2544, Xena2889, Xena3918, Xena1564, and XenaManager and want to obtain help from your support representative.

15.1 Basic Instructions

This section explains how you should report a problem to your support representative.

15.1.1 Describe the Problem

To enable fast resolution of your problem we request that your support request contains the following information:

- Name and version of the Xena test software used (the version can be seen in the main title bar)
- A description of what you are trying to do with the software.
- If the software misbehaved please describe what you actually encountered and you expected instead.
- Screenshots of any error situation.
- The test configuration file for the application (contained in the support archive).
- Any debug log files for the application (contained in the support archive).

15.1.2 Create a Support Information Archive

The Xena test applications include a menu entry called *Create Support Information Archive* which will create a compressed ZIP archive containing both the currently loaded configuration file and the content of the Logs and Settings directories. This file can then be emailed to your support representative.

For the Xena2544 and similar test applications this menu entry is located in the Help menu. For the XenaManager application it is located in the Tools ribbon menu.

File	Edit Viev	v Test Control	Options	Help			
a d	- C	dd Chassis │⇒ S	Start 🔵 Sto	(Online Help	F1	
Physica	al Ports			(Create Support Inform	nation Archive	Т
				(Create and Email Sup	port Information	nter
🖃 ··· 🚞	Available Cha	assis		-			
÷	📉 Chassis	0 'L23 Live			About		
	🗄 🛄 Mod	ule 0, Odin-1G-3S-	6P-T1-			Topology	_

Note: For the Xena2544 and similar test applications it is important that the configuration file used when the problem was detected is loaded when the support archive is generated. Otherwise the configuration file will not be part of the archive.

15.1.3 Attach Screenshots

Screenshots are a great and easy way of communicating what you see on the screen. To obtain a screenshot of a running program and send it to Xena support perform the following actions:

- 1. Point your mouse inside the program window.
- 2. Press the Alt-PrintSc keys simultaneously.
- 3. Switch to your email program and start a new email message.
- 4. Press Ctrl-V or select Paste from the menu (most likely the Edit menu) to insert the screenshot into the email.

15.2 Additional Details

This section goes into a bit more detail about the various items contained in the Xena Support Archive mentioned above.

15.2.1 Configuration Files

The Xena test applications keeps their configurations in special files with an application-specific extension. The extensions used are as follows:

- Xena2544: .x2544
- Xena2889: .x1564
- Xena3918: .x3918
- Xena1564: .x1564
- XenaManager: .xmcfg

The configuration files will be located in a common Xena data directory on your PC. More specifically they will be located in the following path: C:<UserAppDataDir>Xena<XenaTestApplication>. The <UserAppDataDir> directory depends on your Windows version.

The Xena test applications include a menu entry called *Explore Xena Data Directory* in the *File* menu that will open a Windows Explorer in the correct directory, regardless of the Windows version.

15.2.2 Debug Log Files

The Xena test applications logs certain events and errors to a series of debug log file located in the Logs subdirectory under the above mentioned main application data directory. If you encounter errors it may help the support if you include these files in your support request.

SIXTEEN

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Blocks Typology

A topology where each port is associated with either the EAST or the WEST group. Each port in the EAST group will then communicate with all ports in the WEST group, and vice versa. There are thus no direct relation between ports like there are for the Pairs topology. The transmit and receive roles of the ports are determined by the Direction setting.

Direction

Denotes the direction of the traffic flows in relation to the group definitions. The direction can be either unidirectional or bidirectional. Unidirectional flows can be either EAST-to-WEST or WEST-to-EAST.

DUT

Device Under Test

FDV

Frame Delay Variance

FTD

Frame Transfer Delay

IGMP

Internet Group Management Protocol

IGMPV2

Internet Group Management Protocol v2

IGMPV3

Internet Group Management Protocol v3

Iteration

Each test-type can be configured to repeat the test runs associated with the test-type a number of times. Each of these additional runs is called an iteration.

Mesh Typology

A topology where all ports communicate with each other. The direction will always be bidirectional and the EAST/WEST group attribute is not used.

MPLS

Multiprotocol Label Switching (MPLS) is a routing technique in telecommunications networks that directs data from one node to the next based on labels rather than network addresses.

Pair Typology

A topology where each port is associated with exactly one other peer port. The ports must be associated with opposing EAST/WEST groups. A test configuration can contain several port pairs. The transmit and receive roles of the two ports are determined by the Direction setting.

Run

Run A "test run" (or simply "run") denotes the part of the test configuration that is associated with a single test-type and a single packet size. This concept is used for the purpose of progress reporting. A test configuration that specifies the use of e.g. 5 packet sizes and has enabled 3 of the possible 4 test-types will thus consist of 5*3 = 15 runs.

Test Type

Denotes one of the the four types of tests according to **RFC 2544**: Throughput, Latency (and Jitter), Loss, and Back-to-Back (a.k.a. Burst).

TG

Traffic Generation

TID

Test payload identifier

TPLD

Test payload

Trial

A "trial" denotes a single execution of an iteration.

VLAN

Virtual local area network (VLAN) is any broadcast domain that is partitioned and isolated in a computer network at the data link layer (OSI layer 2).

search

INDEX

В

Blocks Typology, 65

D

Direction, 65 DUT, 65

F

FDV, 65 FTD, 65

I

IGMP, **65** IGMPV2, **65** IGMPV3, **65** Iteration, **65**

Μ

Mesh Typology, 65 MPLS, 65

Ρ

Pair Typology, 66

R

TID, **66** TPLD, **66**

```
RFC

RFC 2544,66

RFC 2889,1,5,32

RFC 2889 #section5.1,11

RFC 2889 #section5.4,11

Run,66

T

Test Type,66

TG,66
```

Trial,66 V VLAN,66